
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, October 7, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a 2 
notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Financial Services Director/Treasurer 5 
Fred Buehler, Ald. Jim Bialecki, Ald. Jack Pogreba, Mayor Joe Chilsen, City Engineer Jarrod 6 
Holter 7 
 8 
Also Present:  Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert, Fire Chief Don Dominick, Land Use and 9 
Development Director Brea Grace 10 
 11 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 12 
 13 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the minutes from the previous 14 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 15 
 16 
On voice vote, motion carried. 17 
 18 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 19 
 20 
Ald. Pogreba called for anyone wishing to provide public input. 21 
 22 
Ann Simonson, Representative for Springbrook Community Assisted Living Facility 23 
861 Critter Court 24 
Onalaska 25 
 26 
“We are on the agenda tonight for consideration of temporary permit parking on Critter Court.  27 
You should have received along with your agenda information.  We do have approval from our 28 
neighbors.  They agree that we should be allowed to do this.  We met with our neighbor, Dr. 29 
Feist, and he feels that our request is reasonable.  We’ve also spoken with the director of the 30 
Humane Society, and they have no issues with it as well.  Just a few things to keep in mind are 31 
that we are putting on an addition, and right now we have no place for the construction workers 32 
to park.  We’re going to have a lot of trades coming in, and we are asking them to carpool as 33 
much as possible.  We’re not into the heavy parking yet.  Once we get inside the building there 34 
will be a lot more heavy parking needed.  One thing to also consider is that it’s not a through 35 
street, so because it’s a cul-de-sac the only people really affected are Springbrook and our 36 
neighbors.  Also, we have confirmation from Fire Chief Dominick that we’ve met the safety 37 
considerations with the street.  He had mentioned that he would speak if he was here to confirm 38 
that as well, but that was in a packet of information.  I am here with the Onsite Director, Karen 39 
Roellich, and also our Housing and Marketing Director, Tina [Antony] if you have any questions 40 
as we go through the meeting.” 41 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
2 

 42 
Ald. Pogreba told Ann the board might have questions during discussion of Item 4. 43 
 44 
John Richards 45 
917 Lake Street 46 
Onalaska 47 
 48 
“Up until a week ago I had two ash trees on my boulevard, and so I just wanted to spend a 49 
minute to talk about that story.  I guess the question that comes to my mind is, how can I help 50 
and how can we as a city be smarter?  That’s what came to my mind.  I know that in my work I 51 
can be smarter, too.  As it goes, six years ago I started having the sidewalk replaced in front of 52 
my house because the trees were pushing up the roots and the trees were very valuable, so it was 53 
well worth the investment to spend a few hundred dollars to have the sidewalk repaired.  But 54 
then of course, with the Emerald Ash Borer it became apparent that now we have a problem with 55 
the ash trees.  I had the sidewalk replaced six years ago.  This summer I had another $700 worth 56 
of sidewalk replaced again with the boulevard up almost 20 inches off of the sidewalk right 57 
where … It had pushed the whole boulevard up that high.  When they repaired it this week – and 58 
I must say, the city did a good job of the work – [the trees] are gone and I’m sad that they’re 59 
gone.  But it had to happen, I guess.  I think when I approached a person in the city several years 60 
ago I said, ‘Can we prioritize these trees?’  They said, ‘We don’t prioritize taking down the trees 61 
just because they’re ash trees.’  This is what they said to me several years ago, and I thought, 62 
‘That’s funny, because they’re ash trees.  They’re kind of condemned and they’re doing damage 63 
to the sidewalk, which [costs] hundreds of dollars.’  Anyway, I just thought that kind of slipped 64 
between the cracks, and I think it’s a communication thing.  It seemed reasonable that that would 65 
be a priority, and I think it’s still a priority today or could be a priority.  I also walk the 66 
neighborhood with my dog and I see there are other neighbors who also are in the same pattern I 67 
was in.  Their sidewalks are being replaced again by ash trees that are doing the damage still.  I 68 
would ask that some way we get communication or be smarter about that and that be a policy.  69 
Also, I understand maybe a letter would go out soon, [but] I think making the speed with which 70 
you make those kinds of decisions impacts us.  As I look at people who are facing the decisions 71 
now about the ash trees, it would be an asset to the city to keep as many of the trees as long as 72 
we can, so [implement] any policy that would encourage the homeowners instead of 73 
discouraging them.  In other words, if you say to them, ‘We’ll take them [trees] down or you can 74 
take responsibility for them,’ that’s kind of a harsh way.  I think people are going to then falter 75 
and say, ‘Take them down.’  If you say something more along the lines of, ‘For the next few 76 
years if you want to treat them we’ll keep them in place,’ that would allow the crews to have 77 
more of a staggered work schedule.  It would help the city as well.  People like myself where 78 
they’re approaching that ‘empty nest syndrome’ and they may be moving, there might be a real 79 
logical reason why for the next few years they sure would like to have those trees there.  But it’s 80 
not a forever thing.  I just say, how can we be smarter about these policies?  I appreciate your 81 
attention.”  82 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
3 

 83 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone else wishing to provide public input and closed that 84 
portion of the meeting. 85 
 86 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 87 
 88 
Item 4 – Review and consideration of allowing temporary parking along west side of 89 
Critter Court for construction of Springbrook Community Assisted Living Facility 90 
expansion and future parking considerations along Critter Court 91 
 92 
Mayor Chilsen asked Fire Chief Dominick if there is sufficient room for the Fire Department to 93 
move its trucks in and out of Critter Court. 94 
 95 
Fire Chief Dominick said his department was concerned about the radius based on occupancy.  96 
Fire Chief Dominick noted that the radius of the aerial platform is 42 feet and said he was 97 
presented with a diagram and measurements for street parking.  The measurements show that the 98 
42-foot radius is present. 99 
 100 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve allowing temporary parking 101 
along the west side of Critter Court for construction of Springbrook Community Assisted Living 102 
Facility expansion and future parking considerations along Critter Court. 103 
 104 
Jarrod noted that board members’ packets contain a diagram showing the turning radius entering 105 
the parking areas for fire protection.  Jarrod said fire trucks may enter the driveways with 106 
parking on the side and noted the proposal in front of the board this evening is to leave a no-107 
parking zone on the cul-de-sac bulb so a vehicle may turn around at the bottom of the hill. 108 
 109 
Fire Chief Dominick noted another fire hydrant will be required for the project due to the added 110 
fire load.  The hydrant will be installed where the addition driveway will be located before 111 
construction commences.  Fire Chief Dominick said this should alleviate fire trucks having to 112 
drive by the fire to connect to the hydrant at the end of the street. 113 
 114 
Jarrod suggested issuing temporary parking permits that he would sign.  The parking permits 115 
would be given to the contractor and would need to be displayed in the front windshield. 116 
 117 
Ald. Pogreba asked Jarrod if anything would be placed over the signage noting that permit-only 118 
parking is allowed. 119 
 120 
Jarrod said that this is not common practice with temporary parking.  However, Jarrod also noted 121 
that this is not a typical situation. 122 
 123 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
4 

Ald. Pogreba expressed concern that employees from a neighboring building will have the 124 
impression that parking is permitted in this location. 125 
 126 
Jarrod said it would be possible to create two wafer-board signs that read “Temporary Permit 127 
Parking.” 128 
 129 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said he believes the project will take 14 months 130 
to complete, meaning it is expected to be finished in December 2015. 131 
 132 
A Springbrook representative said the project will be completed before December 2015. 133 
 134 
Jarrod noted he had received an email from the Humane Society that stated its representatives do 135 
not object to temporary parking.  Jarrod also noted Dr. Jon Feist had emailed him stating he does 136 
not object to temporary parking. 137 
 138 
On voice vote, motion carried. 139 
 140 
Fred suggested addressing Item 5 later in the meeting so the board can first address items that 141 
concern individuals in attendance this evening. 142 
 143 
Ald. Pogreba said Item 6 will be addressed next. 144 
 145 
Item 6 – Replacement of Theater Road streetlights by Xcel Energy due to Theater Road 146 
Traffic Signal Project 147 
 148 
Jarrod said Xcel Energy has determined that since the streetlights existed and in the city’s 149 
existing right of way, they will be moved at no cost.  Jarrod noted that he had met with an Xcel 150 
Energy representative earlier Tuesday and said the streetlights had been staked and hopefully 151 
will be installed within two weeks. 152 
 153 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve at no cost the replacement of 154 
Theater Road streetlights by Xcel Energy due to Theater Road Traffic Signal Project. 155 
 156 
On voice vote, motion carried. 157 
 158 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of Wilson Street crosswalk improvements at Onalaska 159 
High School 160 
 161 
Jarrod noted that Kevin has been in contact with Onalaska School District Building and Grounds 162 
Director Dan Dahlquist and said board members’ packets contain estimates for the crosswalk 163 
improvements at 9th Avenue and Wilson Street.  The cost of the project is $24,491.50 and 164 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
5 

includes concrete work, curb and gutter removal and replacement, and installation of a flashing 165 
rapid beacon pedestrian signs.  Jarrod said the Onalaska School District has informed him that 166 
this matter will be brought forward at the October 13 school board meeting and that it is likely 167 
the school board will be in favor of approving up to half the cost. 168 
 169 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve Wilson Street crosswalk 170 
improvements at Onalaska High School, contingent upon the Onalaska School Board endorsing 171 
approving its portion of the project costs, and also the project being included in the 2015 Capital 172 
Improvements Budget. 173 
 174 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the window for construction in 2014 is rapidly 175 
closing and that it would be difficult to complete the project before winter. 176 
 177 
Fred noted that there would need to be a public hearing as part of the funding process. 178 
 179 
On voice vote, motion carried. 180 
 181 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of Wisconsin Department of Transportation Interstate 182 
90 utility installation project costs, including funding of project costs 183 
 184 
Jarrod said board members’ packets include the bid cost for the project that was bid as part of the 185 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation project.  This project was bid as part of the Interstate 90 186 
reconstruction that included the summer 2014 work done on the bicycle trail below Interstate 90.  187 
Jarrod said this is “a small piece” of an approximately $5 million project and noted the cost for 188 
the water main portion is $282,769.20.  Jarrod said he had not included the sanitary sewer 189 
portion as the costs were capped at $20,000.  Jarrod said the current total cost of the project is 190 
$248,381.49 and stated, “When we went through the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget, we had 191 
included $198,000 for the project as outlined.  We used the best numbers available that we had 192 
for the items.  As part of that project we bid out casing pipe that the water main is actually 193 
installed within underneath that box culvert, and that casing pipe came in about double what we 194 
thought it was going to be.” 195 
 196 
Jarrod referenced the casing pipe item on the handout and noted the cost is $104,193.11.  The 197 
estimated cost had been approximately $50,000.  Jarrod said the city was at that point committed 198 
to the project and that it is not possible to negotiate for a different cost.  Jarrod said there had 199 
been negotiations to attempt to utilize a non-steel carrier pipe; however, it would have cost the 200 
city more to utilize a different pipe.  Jarrod said, “We got pulled into a large project bid by the 201 
state and our costs went up drastically.” 202 
 203 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the $325,000 water main check valve 204 
project that is included in the 2014 Capital Improvements Projects will come in more than 205 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
6 

$50,000 under budget.  Jarrod said he is proposing to direct these funds toward the overage on 206 
the Interstate 90 utility installation project costs. 207 
 208 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Fred, to use the residual funds not to exceed $50,000 from 209 
the water main check valve project included in the 2014 Capital Improvements Projects to apply 210 
toward the existing Wisconsin Department of Transportation Interstate 90 utility installation 211 
project. 212 
 213 
Ald. Pogreba noted that there will still be approximately a $300 deficit. 214 
 215 
Jarrod said that if there is insufficient funding funds from the 2012 bond issue for water projects 216 
Fund will be utilized.  Jarrod noted that the current balance in this account is $62,746. 217 
 218 
On voice vote, motion carried. 219 
 220 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of water and sanitary sewer installation as part of 221 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation State Trunk Highway 35 project from Poplar 222 
Street to Riders Club Road 223 
 224 
Jarrod noted this is a project included within the proposed 2015 Capital Projects Budget and said 225 
that whatever action is taken on this item this evening also would have to fall within the 226 
budgetary consideration.  Jarrod said there is reconstruction planned for 2016 on State Trunk 227 
Highway 35 from Poplar Street to County Road OT and toward the Village of Holmen.  228 
Currently there is existing water main from Poplar Street to Royal Street.  Within the project 229 
limits, there have been discussions about how to proceed as there are several Town of Onalaska 230 
residents in an area including Kramer Court, Sunset Vista Road and Hurricane Court.  There also 231 
are undeveloped lands between Kramer Court and Riders Club Road.  Jarrod said, “We wanted 232 
to bring this forward for the board to look at, possibly installing sewer and water as part of that 233 
project.  We ran some preliminary cost estimates, and those are included in your packet tonight.” 234 
 235 
Jarrod said the estimated cost of installing sanitary sewer from Troy Street to Riders Club Road 236 
would be $368,000.  The sanitary sewer is currently served from Poplar Street to Troy Street.  237 
All the other parcels are served via the side streets, so there is no need for sanitary sewer from 238 
Poplar Street to Troy Street.  Jarrod said he had broken up the estimate for a STH 35 water main 239 
into two parts.  Part ‘A’ is the section from Poplar Street to Troy Street and carries an estimated 240 
cost of $298,000.  Part ‘B’ is the installation of a water main from Troy Street to Riders Club 241 
Road and carries an estimated cost of $483,000.  These costs are shown as proposed projects 242 
within the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 243 
 244 
Jarrod said, “When I look at this area, I really feel we need to replace the water main that is in 245 
there from Poplar to Royal at a minimum because this water main is from the 1950s, so it’s 246 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
7 

outdated and really needs to get redone.  From our water system standpoint, to have the water 247 
main up to Troy Street would be beneficial.  All those parcels up to Troy Street are within the 248 
corporate limits of the City of Onalaska.  That would also assist with the looping of our water 249 
main up to Troy Street and back to East Avenue.  I think that is a worthy project to be included 250 
within the proposed DOT project.  When we look at the section from Troy Street to Riders Club, 251 
that’s a policy decision and whether we extend it and then wait for people to come in and use it, 252 
or wait for the people to come to us and then put it in.  One good item about this project is they 253 
are proposing to install a sidewalk from Poplar Street to the wayside where the fish is located at 254 
between Royal and Quincy Street on both sides, so it would be a standard city sidewalk [that is] 255 
6 feet wide.  From Royal Street north they are proposing to install a 10-foot off-street 256 
pedestrian/bicycle facility.  With this graded out and a pedestrian facility installed, if we ever did 257 
get to the point in the future where we had to install the water main and sanitary sewer, we’d 258 
need a permit to work in state right of way.  We would have to pay for all of the grading costs 259 
and the reestablishment of the turf, but at least we would have a location to hopefully put those 260 
utilities without having to go into the pavement.  If we had to go underneath the pavement, this 261 
decision would be a lot harder to make on what to do.  It would probably sway me to the point of 262 
if we are ever going to do it, now is the time.  We should have enough room off to the side.  We 263 
would still have to replace the off-street path, but in the cost of that versus the roadway we’re in 264 
a much better position.  With that, I have not heard of a lot of speculation in that area.  There is 265 
one parcel between Riders Club and Kramer Road that has been getting speculation for a number 266 
of years.  It comes in and has consistently wanted city services, and I think they have shied away 267 
from that lot because they’re not there.  Just the cost of getting them there is very high for the 268 
amount of land that’s there.” 269 
 270 
Jarrod noted that over the winter the Engineering Department will be working on a design to give 271 
to the State of Wisconsin to have the plans.  The deadline to submit the design is April 2015.  272 
Jarrod said, “This either has to be decided now so it can be worked on over the winter and get 273 
those plans ready to be bid and installed in 2016.” 274 
 275 
Ald. Bialecki said he supports Jarrod and asked him to prepare future assessment values for the 276 
properties that are not currently located in the City of Onalaska but abut the area.  Jarrod will 277 
supply this information at the November 4 Board of Public Works meeting should this item go 278 
forward. 279 
 280 
Jarrod said he believes the parcels from Troy Street and north would have to be assessed back 281 
because there is no service today. 282 
 283 
Ald. Pogreba asked if there was any consideration given to cost-sharing the sanitary sewer 284 
installation with the Village of Holmen. 285 
 286 
Jarrod said the area in question still would need its own pipe.  Jarrod also noted it would be 287 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
8 

necessary to construct a lift station, which would not be ideal. 288 
 289 
Item 10 – Review and consideration of State/Municipal Agreement for Wisconsin 290 
Department of Transportation project (ID 7190-06-00/21/71/80) along State Trunk 291 
Highway 35 from Poplar Street to County Trunk Highway OT 292 
 293 
Jarrod said, “If we’re going to put any utilities in at all, the only thing that changes in here is 294 
going to be the cost estimate number in the table.  But otherwise everything pretty much stays 295 
the same.” 296 
 297 
Item 11 – Review and consideration of Changer Order #2 for East Main Street Project 298 
 299 
Jarrod noted that while more crushed aggregate base course was utilized, less breaker run was 300 
utilized.  Jarrod referenced Bid Alternate No. 1 and Item Nos. 1 and 2, noting the westbound lane 301 
to Eagle Bluff Elementary School had experienced significant wear.  Jarrod said it was necessary 302 
to repair the area from where traffic turns left from Theater Road.  Jarrod noted there had been 303 
placement of 3/8-inch thick asphalt wedging over the entire milled area to reduce cracking.  A 304 
leaking water valve was replaced; landscaping stone was installed; and there was additional labor 305 
required to locate private utility lines to maintain the project schedule.  Jarrod said there would 306 
have been a one-month delay if the city had not worked with the contractor to install the base 307 
course on the west side of the roadway.  Jarrod said there are plans to utilize some of the 308 
remaining funds from other paving projects (e.g., Fruit Acres, Oak Forest Drive) within the 309 
budget.  Jarrod estimated that the East Main Street Project likely will come in between $10,000 310 
and $20,000 below budget.  Jarrod proposed going to the 2013 Capital Projects and fund the 311 
project from the balance of the 2013 General Capital Improvements Fund. 312 
 313 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve Change Order #2 for East Main 314 
Street Project at a cost of $64,902.57, with funding coming from the carryover funds from Fruit 315 
Acres and Oak Forest Drive projects. 316 
 317 
On voice vote, motion carried. 318 
 319 
Item 12 – Review and consideration of La Crosse Community Foundation grant 320 
application for planting trees in City boulevards 321 
 322 
Jarrod said board members’ packets contain a review of the foundation grant, noting 323 
Planner/Zoning Inspector Katie Meyer is working on this grant as well as the Department of 324 
Natural Resources Forestry Grant.  Jarrod said, “This is a great project if we can get this funding 325 
to help put some of the trees back in that we have removed and/or are planning on removing.  As 326 
you know, our Emerald Ash Borer plan calls out for removing all the ash trees in the next three 327 
years.  We are hoping over the course of the next year to remove one-third of our ash trees 328 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
9 

between the parks and the boulevards.  There could be up to 600 trees removed.  We have started 329 
on some of those in areas where we’ve been getting either dead trees or citizens coming in with 330 
issues such as we heard tonight in the public comment.  This grant would be a 50-percent match.  331 
The one thing I would point out is if we apply for this grant we should be cognizant of that 332 
within the Capital Improvements Budget and leave enough funding in to fund this half of the 333 
grant.  It would be a shame to get the grant and not have funding to fund the city’s 50-percent 334 
match.” 335 
 336 
Ald. Bialecki said this can be discussed further when the board discusses the 2015 Capital 337 
Improvements Budget, but added he believes the grant application is logical. 338 
 339 
Brea noted that the grant must be submitted by Wednesday, October 15. 340 
 341 
Jarrod said it will be necessary for the board to make a decision this evening and stated, “If we 342 
do apply and we do not fund the match or we cannot find the match I guess we would have to 343 
give the grant back.” 344 
 345 
Mayor Chilsen and Jarrod both noted this is a City of Onalaska project. 346 
 347 
Item 13 – Review and consideration of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Urban 348 
Forestry Grant 349 
 350 

A. Grant application 351 
 352 
Jarrod noted that the city is applying for the grant and said the city has applied for this grant 353 
multiple years in the past.  Jarrod said city forces are being utilized as the match for the grant.  354 
When city staff performs tree removal as part of the Emerald Ash Borer Plan, it will be the city’s 355 
match for the grant.  Jarrod said the city has applied in the grant to utilize the funds received 356 
from the DNR to plant trees as mitigation measure for the Emerald Ash Borer.  Jarrod said he is 357 
seeking approval of the grant application. 358 
 359 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve the grant application for the 360 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Urban Forestry Grant. 361 
 362 
On voice vote, motion carried. 363 
 364 

B. Resolution 26-2014 – Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Urban Forestry Grant 365 
 366 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve Resolution 26-2014 – Wisconsin 367 
Department of Natural Resources Urban Forestry Grant. 368 
 369 
On voice vote, motion carried. 370 
Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
10 

 371 
Jarrod returned to Item 12, noting there is no motion on the floor and asking if the city should 372 
apply for the La Crosse Community Foundation grant. 373 
 374 
Mayor Chilsen said he believes a motion should be put on the floor and passed. 375 
 376 
Ald. Pogreba asked that Item 5 be discussed first before returning to Item 12. 377 
 378 
Item 14 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., MSA 379 
Professional Services, Mathy Construction, Haas Sons, Winona Mechanical, A-1 380 
Excavating, Wapasha Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and 381 
any other contractor/developer  382 
 383 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 384 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 385 

 386 
October 7, 2014 387 

 388 
    Original 389 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 390 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 391 
 392 
1.  PEMBER COMPANIES 393 
     Misc. Concrete Project 394 
     Construction 395 
     Estimate #3  $  94,333.50 $  -  $ 68,379.57  $  2,220.63 396 
        397 
2.  WAPASHA CONSTRUCTION 398 
     2013 Reservoir Improvements 399 
     Construction 400 
     Estimate #9  $   294,991.99    $     -       $   265,190.71  $   7,104.05 401 
 402 
3.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 403 
     East Main Street 404 
     Construction 405 
     Estimate #5    $   992,959.90   $     ($59,930) $   908,980.50 $   60,536.06 406 
 407 
4.  STRAND ASSOCIATES INC 408 
     Well #9 – Reconstruction/Filter 409 
     Design 410 
     Estimate #4    $   36,900.00     $     -       $   34,700.00 $   2,200.00 411 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
11 

 412 
5.  STATE OF WI – DOT 413 
     San. Sewer & Watermain Relocation – Construction 414 
     I-90 Bike Trail 415 
     (1071-06-86) 416 
     Estimate #3    $   240,000.00    $     -       $   235,846.42 $   7,636.01 417 
 418 
6.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 419 
     2014 Paving Project 420 
     Construction 421 
     Estimate #2    $   610,900.50     $     -       $   129,857.88 $   193,945.81 422 
 423 
7.  COULEE REGION MECHANICAL 424 
     Omni Center Boiler Replacement 425 
     Construction 426 
     Estimate #1    $   189,949.00     $     -       $   -  $   13,490.00 427 
 428 
8.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 429 
     Well #9 – Reconstruct/Filter 430 
     Design 431 
     Estimate #1    $   132,700.00     $     -       $   -  $   13,500.00 432 
 433 
9.  LA CROSSE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 434 
     Chipseal Construction 435 
     Estimate #1 -- FINAL   $   170,000.00   $     -       $   -  $   165,553.89 436 
 437 
10.  ST. JOSEPH CONSTRUCTION 438 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 439 
     Construction 440 
     Estimate #5 – FINAL   $   747,906.54   $     -       $   738,842.94 $   3,271.35 441 
 442 
11.  SEH INC. (01375) 443 
     Pralle Center Drive Study Update 444 
     Study 445 
     Estimate #5    $   13,000.00     $     -       $   11,310.00 $   1,690.00 446 
 447 
12.  CHIPPEWA CONCRETE SERVICES 448 
     Marcou Road Sidewalk Project 449 
     Construction 450 
     Estimate #4    $   200,685.00     $     -       $   188,714.05 $   4,904.00 451 
 452 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
12 

13.  FAHRNER ASPHALT 453 
     Fiber Patching – City Wide 454 
     Estimate #2    $   51,120.00     $     -       $   14,418.68 $   10,270.86 455 
 456 
14.  WINONA MECHANICAL 457 
     Check Valve Project 458 
     Construction 459 
     Estimate #3 – FINAL    $   321,543.00    $     -       $   251,167.18 $   12,826.30 460 
 461 
15.  AYRES ASSOCIATES (02632) 462 
     I-90 Sanitary Sewer 463 
     Design 464 
     Estimate #9    $   35,000.00     $     -       $   33,102.61 $   1,994.61 465 
 466 
16.  STATE OF WI – DOT 467 
     Safe Routes to School 468 
     Construction 469 
     Estimate #1 – FINAL    $   16,930.66     $     -       $   -  $   16,930.66 470 
 471 
17.  SEH INC (01375) 472 
     Reservoir Upgrades 473 
     Design 474 
     Estimate #6    $   1,850.00     $     -       $   23,879.79 $   567.51 475 
 476 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to pay the 17 estimates as printed and on 477 
file. 478 
 479 
On voice vote, motion carried. 480 
 481 
Item 5 – Review and consideration of 2015-2019 Capital Improvements Budget 482 
 483 
Jarrod noted the 2016, 2017 and 2018 portions of the budget have been reviewed and passed on 484 
to the next year.  Tonight the board is tasked with the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget.  485 
Jarrod noted a copy of the budget has been included in board members’ packets.  Board members 486 
also have been given a copy this evening. 487 
 488 
Ald. Bialecki asked Fred what the cap is with which the board has to work, and also asked if 489 
water and sewer projects must be included. 490 
 491 
Fred said that if the city was to handle Project No. 4b, which is the construction of a filtration 492 
plant at Well No. 9, it would be excluded from the $3.4 million or under cap.  Fred said it is not 493 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
13 

possible to do water projects along with the Safe Water Drinking Loan in the application. 494 
 495 
Jarrod said the Safe Water Drinking Loan application is for that specific project.  The city could 496 
submit for more than one project, but a large project is necessary to make applying for the loan 497 
worthwhile. 498 
 499 
Public Works Department 500 
 501 

• No. 1 – Stormwater Quality Management/Pond No. 17 dredging & expansion 502 
($76,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he favors this. 503 

• No. 2 – Sidewalk repair program with 1/7 City replacement program ($120,000):  504 
Both Mayor Chilsen and Ald. Bialecki said they favor this. 505 

• No. 3 – Pavement maintenance program with La Crosse County Highway 506 
Department ($250,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he favors this. 507 

• No. 4 – Well No. 9 Filtration Plant – a. Design and b. Construction:  Ald. Bialecki 508 
said he will approve of this project provided there is an alternate funding source. 509 

• No. 5 – STH 35 reconstruction from Poplar St. north to Riders Club Road in 2016 510 
($1,199,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he approves of this. 511 

 512 
Fred asked Jarrod if this only contains the area he believes needs to be addressed or does it 513 
include other areas. 514 
 515 
Jarrod said the water ($781,000) and sanitary sewer ($368,000) amounts include the entire 516 
project as outlined in Agenda Item 9.  The water from Poplar Street to Riders Club Road would 517 
be funded, as would the sanitary sewer from Troy Street to Riders Club Road.  Jarrod said the 518 
$50,000 is to match the city’s portion of the funding for the off-street trail. 519 
 520 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said if only the water main portion from Poplar Street 521 
to Troy Street is addressed, the estimated cost is $298,000. 522 
 523 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the sewer is located outside the city limits. 524 
 525 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Fred said $368,000 could be subtracted if the city 526 
decided not to go outside the city limits with the sanitary sewer. 527 
 528 
Jarrod said, “If you did not do the sewer and water portion from Troy Street to Riders Club you 529 
would have a project cost that would go from $1,199,000 to $348,000.” 530 
 531 
Ald. Pogreba, Ald. Bialecki and Mayor Chilsen all said they believe this item should remain for 532 
the time being as the city looks to expand to this area. 533 
 534 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
14 

Fred noted that Jarrod has only shown the board the parcels on the right side and said he assumes 535 
there also are parcels on the left side that would be affected. 536 
 537 
Ald. Bialecki asked Jarrod to bring before the board a list of all properties not located in the City 538 
of Onalaska that would benefit from this project, as well as their assessments. 539 
 540 
Ald. Pogreba cautioned that there could be a main that covered the area to Riders Club Road. 541 
 542 
Fred said this is assessable back to the abutting property owners. 543 
 544 

• No. 6 – Railroad Quiet Zone study for 2nd Ave. SW and Irvin Street – a. Design and 545 
b. Construction ($250,000) 546 

 547 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 6 – Railroad Quiet Zone study 548 
for 2nd Ave. SW and Irvin Street – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 549 
 550 
Jarrod said if the Railroad Quiet Zone Supplemental Safety Measures are submitted for the 551 
project at 2nd Avenue Southwest, and if the city receives this, it will come through the Board of 552 
Public Works as a special project.  Jarrod said he anticipates the project would cost significantly 553 
less than $250,000; specifically, $10,000 to $20,000.  Jarrod said, “I have no problem taking this 554 
out, but I would hope that if I brought that through the Board of Public Works we would find a 555 
way to fund that smaller project if it did happen.” 556 
 557 
Mayor Chilsen said some funds will need to be expended given the discussion involved with the 558 
recent charrette with “Building the Great River Landing.” 559 
 560 
Ald. Bialecki said it is crucial that local roads be repaired.  Ald. Bialecki also said it is important 561 
that STH 35 be addressed as the city prepares for future expansion. 562 
 563 
On voice vote, motion carried. 564 
 565 

• No. 7 – Riders Club Road street renovation STH 35 to Sand Lake Road – a. Design 566 
and b. Construction:  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain because it is funded 567 
by the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget. 568 

• No. 8 – Braund St./PH design Braund St. to Theater Road, PH to STH 16 street 569 
reconstruction – a. Design and b. Construction:  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this 570 
remain because it is funded by the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget. 571 

• No. 9 – Street repaving Wilson St. between 12th Ave. South/13th Ave. South 572 
($57,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain. 573 

• No. 10 – Street repaving Holiday Heights, East Young Dr. from West Young Dr. to 574 
Town of Medary ($34,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain. 575 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
15 

• No. 11 – East Main Street, Theater Road to Marcou Road, mill and overlay 576 
($723,000):  Ald. Bialecki proposed bonding for $200,000 in 2015, and then bonding for 577 
$523,000 in 2016. 578 

 579 
Jarrod noted there still are several street paving projects on the list and said, “In my mind when 580 
using the $3.5 million cap, you either are going to do East Main or you’re going to do a bunch of 581 
the other streets that are in here.  You can’t do both and stay within the $3.4 million.  If we leave 582 
that out and just take it out and we concentrate on the other streets, then maybe next year we 583 
don’t do as many neighborhood streets and we concentrate on doing that project.” 584 
 585 
Mayor Chilsen said, “That’s the way I would rather do it.” 586 
 587 
Ald. Pogreba said he believes repairs can be delayed for one more year. 588 
 589 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 11 – East Main Street, Theater 590 
Road to Marcou Road, mill and overlay – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 591 
 592 
On voice vote, motion carried. 593 
 594 

• No. 12 – Sand Lake Road/CTH SN, Design; CTH S to CTH OT (administered by La 595 
Crosse County):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain as it is a 2014 Capital 596 
Improvements Budget carryover. 597 

• No. 13 – Compact track loader ($77,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this 598 
remain. 599 

• No. 14 – Sanitary sewer combination cleaning truck ($300,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he 600 
wants to see this remain. 601 

• No. 15 – I-90 sanitary sewer ($500,000):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain. 602 
• No. 16 – Green Coulee intersection improvements – a. Design and b. Construction 603 

($4,200,000):  Ald. Bialecki said this will be part of a future project. 604 
 605 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 16 – Green Coulee 606 
intersection improvements – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 607 
 608 
Ald. Bialecki said, “If we ever have a large project come into the city where it really warrants it 609 
has to be done, at least we have a number to work with now.” 610 
 611 
Jarrod acknowledged that this is “a large monetary impact project” and said, “At some point I 612 
think we spend the money to preliminary design so we know that the cost estimate is realistic 613 
and we know the impacts if the project was going to be done.  In the Engineering Department 614 
we’ve laid out some different intersection designs, and that’s where we came up with the 615 
number.  But at some point it needs to go to the next level to see what the true impacts are going 616 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
16 

to be to the area.” 617 
 618 
Mayor Chilsen said, “I would like to at least see the preliminaries stay in.  We have to at some 619 
point figure out what we’re going to do out there.” 620 
 621 
Ald. Pogreba referenced the $100,000 cost for the Preliminary and said this total might be spent 622 
elsewhere. 623 
 624 
Mayor Chilsen reiterated that a decision eventually will have to be made. 625 
 626 
Ald. Bialecki said he agrees with Ald. Pogreba, stating, “I would rather wait to see if and when 627 
there’s going to be that big project and what it’s going to be.” 628 
 629 
Mayor Chilsen said he agrees with this reasoning. 630 
 631 
On voice vote, motion carried. 632 
 633 

• No. 17 – 3rd Ave. South-Main St. to Green St. ($325,500):  Ald. Bialecki said he wants 634 
to see this remain. 635 

• No. 18 – Crossing Meadows Dr. pavement replacement, 12th Ave. S to 1,200 feet east 636 
($182,000) 637 

 638 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to remove Project No. 18 – Crossing Meadows Dr. 639 
pavement replacement – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 640 
 641 
On voice vote, motion carried. 642 
 643 

• No. 19 – Green St reconstruction, 9th Ave. to 10th Ave. & Horman Blvd. ($452,000):  644 
Ald. Bialecki said he wants to see this remain. 645 

• No. 20 – Street repaving for 14th Ave. North, 15th Ave. North, 16th Ave. North, 17th 646 
Ave. North, Monroe St., Madison St. and 13th Court ($340,000):  Mayor Chilsen said 647 
he wants to see this remain. 648 

• No. 21 – Public Works Facility, epoxy floor coating, heated storage and mechanics’ 649 
bay ($80,000):  Mayor Chilsen said he wants to see this remain. 650 

• No. 22 – Coachlite Subdivision repaving, Grand View Blvd., Fairway Court, 651 
Coachlite Court North and Coachlite Court South ($325,000):  Mayor Chilsen said he 652 
wants to see this remain. 653 

 654 
Ald. Bialecki noted that while Coachlite has been in existence between 20 and 25 years, there are 655 
older streets that need attention. 656 
 657 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
17 

Ald. Pogreba said he would “put a question mark and see where we end up.” 658 
 659 
Jarrod addressed Project No. 20 and said the streets are some of the older ones within the city.  660 
The last time these streets were paved was between 1970 and 1976.  Jarrod said he is leery to 661 
include Project No. 22 because the houses in Coachlite are newer.  Jarrod also said the city can 662 
continue patching the streets in Coachlite for another year, but also noted that this subdivision 663 
was one of the first that was constructed on the poor soil in Green Coulee.  Jarrod said there was 664 
a lack of underbase and that he is proposing to repave it. 665 
 666 
The recorded conversation ended at this point, to continue on Side B as follows. 667 
 668 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to remove Project No. 22 – Coachlite 669 
Subdivision repaving – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 670 
 671 
On voice vote, motion carried. 672 
 673 
Jarrod addressed Project No. 21 and referenced a photograph of the Public Works Facility floor.  674 
Jarrod said the floor in the heated storage area is 8 inches thick with a double ____ of rebar.  675 
Jarrod said it would be very costly to replace, but also noted that the top of the floor is 676 
deteriorating due to melting salt from dump trucks and other vehicles.  Jarrod said that he is 677 
requesting an epoxy floor now because it would cost $300,000 to replace the whole floor if it is 678 
not addressed for 20 years. 679 
 680 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said the bond issues have been utilized for a 681 
variety of projects over the last three years.  Jarrod cited the example of the water membrane 682 
project, noting it have five different years of bond issuances shown for it. 683 
 684 

• No. 24 – Sand Lake Road reconstruction, Redwood St. to Riders Club Road 685 
($50,000) 686 

 687 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to remove Project No. 24 – Sand Lake Road 688 
reconstruction – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 689 
 690 
On voice vote, motion carried. 691 
 692 

• No. 25 – King St. reconstruction, 5th Ave. North to 6th Ave. North; 6th Ave. North 693 
reconstruction, Main St. to Monroe St. ($264,000):  Jarrod noted there is 4-inch water 694 
main beneath the road that eventually will need to be replaced.  Jarrod also said the block 695 
of the street between King St. and Main St. is in disrepair.  However, Jarrod noted the 696 
cost includes the installation of a sidewalk with a retaining wall.  The street also would be 697 
reconstructed to connect the sidewalk from King St. to Main St.  Jarrod said the block of 698 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
18 

King Street and the block Oak Avenue/6th Avenue North between King Street and 699 
Madison Street has seen extensive wear, but is not in serious disrepair.  Jarrod said he 700 
believes this project can wait until 2016. 701 

 702 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to remove Project No. 25 – King St. reconstruction, 703 
5th Ave. North to 6th Ave. North; 6th Ave. North reconstruction, Main St. to Monroe St. – from 704 
the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 705 
 706 
On voice vote, motion carried. 707 
 708 

• No. 26 – Alley paving projects – a. Alley construction between Irvin St./Main St. & 709 
3rd Ave. North/4th Ave. North ($30,000) and b. Alley paving between Irvin 710 
St./Hickory St.& 3rd Ave. North/4th Ave. North ($20,000):  Jarrod noted that what is 711 
listed should read 3rd Avenue South and 4th Avenue South. 712 

 713 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to remove Project No. 26 – Alley paving 714 
projects – a. Alley construction between Irvin St./Main St. & 3rd Ave. South/4th Ave. South and 715 
b. Alley paving between Irvin St./Hickory St.& 3rd Ave. South/4th Ave. South – from the 2015 716 
Capital Improvements Budget. 717 
 718 
On voice vote, motion carried. 719 
 720 

• No. 27 – Green Coulee booster station, rehabilitation, install Variable Frequency 721 
Drive ($75,000):  Jarrod asked the board to allow this item to remain in the budget until 722 
November as he is attempting to obtain more information.  Jarrod said the booster station 723 
has a jockey pump that functions 24 hours a day.  As a result, the pump burns up after a 724 
few months.  Jarrod said he would like to put the pumps on Variable Frequency Drive.  725 
Jarrod said there is no reservoir in the area to cushion, noting the system is a “constant-726 
demand system.” 727 

• No. 28 – South Kinney Coulee lift station reconstruction ($302,000):  Jarrod said this 728 
the lift station into which the La Crosse Landfill pumps.  More cells are being added into 729 
the landfill, and the lift station was a carryover from the City of La Crosse.  Jarrod said 730 
the lift station was not installed with length of service in mind, adding this lift station 731 
likely is the worst asset in the water and sewer utility. 732 

• No. 29 – Pearl St. reconstruction, 4th Ave. to 6th Ave/6th Ave. North ($277,000):  733 
Jarrod said this is another project with a 4-inch water main.  Jarrod said he believes 3rd 734 
Avenue South is a higher-priority project.  However, Jarrod also pointed out that if the 735 
city chooses to address 3rd Avenue South there is not much utility work in the budget.  As 736 
a result, the city likely will receive higher prices. 737 

 738 
Jarrod said, “I know I’ve been trying to put an emphasis on replacement of city streets that we 739 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
19 

see throughout the community due to our condition rating, which is a very good cause and I’ve 740 
been advocating that.  But also, if you remember in the 1990s and early 2000s we were 741 
advocating replacement of older subdivisions within the city … this is one of the few streets left 742 
that wasn’t done.” 743 
 744 
Ald. Bialecki asked Fred if the city is committed to do projects it bonds for if there is an event 745 
such as a dramatic rise in fuel prices in 2015.  Ald. Bialecki also asked if the city can delay these 746 
projects. 747 
 748 
Fred said the city created resolutions for different items such as street projects and equipment 749 
projects.  Fred said, “If in fact you decide to delay it, that just delays that portion of that 750 
resolution to a future date.” 751 
 752 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said he would prioritize Project No. 17, which is still in 753 
the 2015 CIB, over Project No. 29. 754 
 755 

• No. 30 – Stormwater Drainage Project, 1200 block Lake St. ($10,000):  Jarrod said 756 
there are approximately 10 houses that drain into a backyard that consistently floods.  757 
Jarrod said that if this project is removed he will bring it forward to the Board of Public 758 
works utilizing the Operating Fund from the Stormwater Utility. 759 

 760 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to remove Project No. 30 – Stormwater Drainage 761 
Project, 1200 block Lake St. – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 762 
 763 
On voice vote, motion carried. 764 
 765 

• No. 31 – French Rd. – a. Booster Station ($650,000) and b. Water Main ($150,000) 766 
 767 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to remove Project No. 31 – French Rd. 768 
booster station and water main – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 769 
 770 
Ald. Pogreba said he had spoken with an individual who told him the land cannot be developed 771 
until there is a lift station.  Ald. Pogreba noted that the city needs to see a formal plan. 772 
 773 
Brea noted that the city approved a plan for the French Road development in 2009.  Brea said the 774 
developer is still interested in developing the property and is seeking the city’s assistance for 775 
funding of the booster station.  Brea said she believes this would help the developers expedite the 776 
project to make it happen faster.   However, Brea added if the city does not fund the booster 777 
station the developers would need to fund those infrastructure components for their development.  778 
Brea pointed out that a booster station would spur other development in this area. 779 
 780 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
20 

On voice vote, motion carried. 781 
 782 
Fred noted that $7,104,000 has been removed so far. 783 
 784 
Ald. Bialecki told Brea that if the developer with whom she has spoken intends to develop 785 
French Road there is still time for him to commit to this. 786 
 787 

• No. 32 – Aerial photographs ($14,000):  Jarrod said staff had examined purchasing 788 
higher resolution digital photography aerial photographs.  Jarrod said he has spoken with 789 
GIS Technician Joe Barstow and stated he believes this item may be removed because the 790 
6-inch pixel received from La Crosse County will be sufficient. 791 

 792 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to remove Project No. 32 – Aerial photographs – 793 
from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 794 
 795 
On voice vote, motion carried. 796 
 797 

• No. 33 – Fruit Acres addition, water main tie-in to Oak Ave. South ($65,000):  Jarrod 798 
said he wants to see this project remain. 799 

• No. 34 – Wilson St. pedestrian improvements at Onalaska High School ($15,000):  800 
Fred said he assumes the price will change. 801 

 802 
Jarrod said leaving $15,000 in does not leave the city much contingency, noting next year’s bid 803 
price could increase 10 percent. 804 
 805 
Fred said the amount should be $30,000, with $15,000 coming from other sources – in this case, 806 
the Onalaska School District. 807 
 808 
Jarrod said the amount should be $30,000 under “General,” $30,000 under “Total Cost” and 809 
$15,000 under “Less Amount from Other Sources.”  As a result, only $15,000 would need to be 810 
borrowed. 811 
 812 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to modify Project No. 34 – Wilson St. pedestrian 813 
improvements at Onalaska High School – to show $30,000 under “General,” $30,00 under “Total 814 
Cost,” $15,000 under “Less Amount from Other Sources,” and $15,000 under “Amount Needed 815 
by Borrowing.” 816 
 817 
On voice vote, motion carried. 818 
 819 
 820 
 821 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
21 

Planning Department 822 
 823 

• No. 35 – Waterfront Property acquisition, Phase I TIF:  Jarrod said this item is a 824 
carryover that utilizes existing Capital Improvement funds. 825 

• No. 36 – Viewshed enhancements at Waterfront:  Jarrod said this item is a carryover 826 
that utilizes existing Capital Improvement funds. 827 

• No. 37 – Urban Forestry, General, Non-Emerald Ash Borer ($25,000):  Jarrod said 828 
this funds tree planting within the community boulevards. 829 

 830 
Brea noted that this the amount the city has annually been funding for the boulevard tree planting 831 
program.  Brea also noted that between 50 and 60 trees were planted in 2014. 832 
 833 
Jarrod noted that the city has been collecting funds from trees that are damaged.  Jarrod also 834 
noted that Fred has a designated fund account where it would be ideal to spend those funds on 835 
trees.  Doing so could offset part of the $25,000. 836 
 837 
Fred noted there is $7,303 in this account and said the city collects from insurance companies 838 
when individuals strike trees.  Fred also referenced the city pursuing the grant that was discussed 839 
under Item 12 and asked Jarrod if it is possible to consolidate the grant for a 50-50 match. 840 
 841 
Jarrod said, “These are all things that can go toward that match.” 842 
 843 
Fred asked Brea what she is speculating for a 50-50 match. 844 
 845 
Jarrod said the 50-50 match for the La Crosse Community Foundation Grant is outlined in the 846 
packet as $85,000.  Jarrod said the city will match $85,000 for a project total of $170,000. 847 
 848 
Brea said she is optimistic the city will obtain the grant. 849 
 850 
In response to a question by Fred regarding the La Crosse Community Foundation Grant, Jarrod 851 
said the proposal is to utilize funds from Project No. 39 and stated, “If we did Item No. 39 we 852 
could lower that number by $85,000, assuming we would get the grant.” 853 
 854 
Fred inquired about the DNR grant. 855 
 856 
Jarrod said it would be possible to reduce the amount by another $25,000 and reduce the total to 857 
$110,000. 858 
 859 
Brea noted that the DNR grant is matched by city labor. 860 
 861 
Fred said, “I would feel more comfortable holding this up there and pursuing those two grants.” 862 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
22 

 863 
Jarrod said, “This is a one of three-year plan.  If we want to replant trees for the Emerald Ash 864 
Borer, this No. 39 you will see in 2016 and 2017 in order to get everything back to where we had 865 
it before – not size of trees, but number of trees.” 866 
 867 
Fred reminded the board that it needs to return to Item 12 for discussion and approval. 868 
 869 

• No. 38 – Braund Lumber demolition ($125,000):  Ald. Pogreba recommended 870 
retaining this item. 871 

• No. 39 – Emerald Ash Borer, tree planting & stump removal, tree removal by city 872 
staff, year one of three-year program ($220,000):  This item already has been 873 
discussed. 874 

• No. 40 – City wayfinding/entrance signage study ($20,000):  Brea noted that STH 35 875 
will be reconstructed in 2016 and said she is requesting aligning the placement of two 876 
entrance signs into the city.  One would be the Mason Street/Riders Club Road area along 877 
STH 35, and the other would be on the southern edge of the city as motorists enter off 878 
Interstate 90 Exit 3.  Brea said she is seeking funding for the initial design work, and also 879 
to provide a cost estimate for the sign.  Brea said the Planning Department would look at 880 
budgeting the capital expenses for the sign in 2016. 881 

 882 
Jarrod said he does not believe a sign would be as large as the sign located near the Department 883 
of Motor Vehicles on STH 16. 884 
 885 
Ald. Pogreba said he does not favor borrowing funds for studies. 886 
 887 
Fred said he would like to see Tourism pay for this from its funding. 888 
 889 
Jarrod said the word “study” is misleading, noting it would be more of a preliminary design on 890 
placement and obtaining a cost estimate. 891 
 892 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to remove Project No. 40 – City 893 
wayfinding/entrance signage study – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 894 
 895 
Fred said it will be moved into “Other Sources” and promised to alter the wording and include 896 
the words “preliminary design.” 897 
 898 
On voice vote, motion carried. 899 
 900 

• No. 41 – Waterfront improvements, a. Boating improvements ($500,000) and b. 901 
Riverwalk ($500,000):  Brea requested that this item be carried over to November, 902 
noting the charrette had been held from September 29 through October 1.  Brea said she 903 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
23 

and Jarrod will follow up with Short Elliott Hendrickson at the end of the week to discuss 904 
phasing, bring back the preliminary plan and discuss what some of the initial projects and 905 
cost estimates would be. 906 

 907 
Jarrod said he believes the citizens who attended the charrette were optimistic about the project’s 908 
possibilities and stated he believes there is public support for it.  Jarrod said, “We need to have a 909 
better definition of what we’re doing if we would fun something” 910 
 911 

• No. 42 – Bluffland Protection Program ($25,000):  Brea noted that the Parks and 912 
Recreation Board renewed an agreement with Mississippi Valley Conservancy and said 913 
the city previously had budgeted $25,000.  This was held until a project came along.  914 
Brea said if there is a priority land acquisition the funds already would be available, and 915 
the MVC would bring the specific program forward and it would be funded at that time.  916 
Brea said the funds would be available and the city could respond quickly if there is a 917 
land acquisition that would help the city to connect its Greenway Plan. 918 

 919 
Fred asked, “Is there anything out there that we ought to be aware of?  If there’s nothing to 920 
connect why would we invest?” 921 
 922 
Brea said she believes there are pieces behind Green Coulee and in the French Valley area that 923 
would connect the Greenway Plan.  Brea noted that in previous years the city had twice funded 924 
the $25,000.  This went toward acquisition of lands near the Green Coulee Park. 925 
 926 
Mayor Chilsen said he believes this is the $25,000 the Parks and Recreation Board had brought 927 
forward. 928 
 929 
Brea asked that this item remain for further discussion in November. 930 
 931 

• No. 43 – Bicycle trail improvements, STH 35 & Main St., Main St. including 932 
restroom facility, trailhead ($235,000):  Brea said the city is required to construct a 933 
trailhead for the Great River State Trail in partnership with the DNR.  Brea said she is 934 
looking to start the project within the next year or two. 935 

 936 
Jarrod noted this also ties in with the design that is being worked out with SEH’s design of the 937 
Waterfront area, including the first block off Main Street.  SEH showed this building as part of 938 
its design process. 939 
 940 
Ald. Pogreba said this item may remain and be discussed again in November. 941 
 942 
 943 
 944 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
24 

Fire Department 945 
 946 

• No. 44 – Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) replacement, quantity = 40 947 
($210,000):  Jarrod noted that the Fire Department has applied for a grant three different 948 
times to have these replaced and have failed each time. 949 

 950 
Fire Chief Dominick said, “We’re at a point that some of our current air bottles can’t be sent for 951 
testing any more.  The cost to repair right now, we have two at the distributorship that we’re 952 
going to hold off on for even repairs because we’re approaching $1,000 for repairs.” 953 
 954 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Fire Chief Dominick said the department will not pay 955 
full price and assured Ald. Pogreba the total of $210,000 will be reduced.  Fire Chief Dominick 956 
noted there are four manufacturers of approved SCBA and said the first one will arrive in two 957 
weeks for testing selection.  Fire Chief Dominick said, “As we whittle down which we’ll go 958 
with, then we’ll get some more competitive pricing.” 959 
 960 
Ald. Pogreba asked if it will be necessary to purchase 40 at the same time. 961 
 962 
Fire Chief Dominick said it might be possible to purchase some in 2015 and the rest in 2016, but 963 
cautioned that pricing must be examined.  Fire Chief Dominick noted pricing as increased as 964 
standards become more stringent and said, “What we have to ensure is that our firefighters have 965 
a brand that can be utilized because they have a face piece that is going to have to fit the air pack 966 
that’s on the rig that they’re on.” 967 
 968 
Jarrod noted that each manufacturer is different. 969 
 970 
Ald. Bialecki asked Fire Chief Dominick if all four manufacturers are based in the United States. 971 
 972 
Fire Chief Dominick said yes, noting one of the manufacturers was recently approved and the 973 
Fire Department wants them to come in for testing.  This manufacturer just received a contract 974 
for every branch of the military. 975 
 976 
Ald. Pogreba expressed concern that this manufacturer will not supply the city with what it needs 977 
when it needs it if the manufacturer is supplying the military with hundreds of thousands of 978 
SCBAs. 979 
 980 
Fire Chief Dominick said his department has no preconceived notion which manufacturer it will 981 
choose. 982 
 983 
Mayor Chilsen said he wants to see a plan where some SCBAs are constantly being replaced. 984 
 985 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
25 

• No. 45 – Land & Facilities, a. Purchase land (3 acres @ $3.00/sq. ft.) Fire Station 986 
No. 2 at STH 16 & I-90 vicinity ($396,000) 987 

 988 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 45 – Land & Facilities, 989 
a. Purchase land for Fire Station No. 2 at STH 16 & I-90 vicinity – from the 2015 Capital 990 
Improvements Budget. 991 
 992 
On voice vote, motion carried. 993 
 994 
Parks & Recreation Department 995 
 996 
Fred noted that Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick is not in attendance and asked Jarrod to 997 
share with the board, in order, which items Dan had prioritized. 998 
 999 

• No. 46 – Nathan Hills area playground ($25,000) 1000 
• No. 47 – Van Riper Park playground replacement ($75,000) 1001 
• No. 51 – Natural areas management plan ($12,000) 1002 
• No. 48 – Van Riper Park outfield fencing ($25,000) 1003 
• No. 49 – Hilltopper Heights Park basketball court overlay ($18,500) 1004 
• No. 50 – Pierce Park shade structure ($30,000) 1005 

 1006 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove both Project No. 49 – Hilltopper Heights 1007 
Park basketball court overlay – and Project No. 50 – Pierce Park shade structure – from the 2015 1008 
Capital Improvements Budget. 1009 
 1010 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1011 
 1012 
Ald. Pogreba asked if the Parks and Recreation Department has any funds it can utilize without 1013 
having to borrow. 1014 
 1015 
Fred said Dan is aware of when he may utilize the Park Fund and that none of these items are 1016 
subject to Park Fund utilization. 1017 
 1018 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 46 – Nathan Hills 1019 
area playground – Project No. 47 – Van Riper Park playground replacement – Project No. 48 – 1020 
Van Riper Park outfield fencing – and Project No. 51 – Natural areas management plan – from 1021 
the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 1022 
 1023 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1024 
 1025 
 1026 
Reviewed 10/10/14 
 

mailto:acres@$3.00/sq


Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
26 

Police Department 1027 
 1028 

• No. 52 – Replace two squad cars ($88,000):  Ald. Pogreba said this item will remain for 1029 
now. 1030 

 1031 
Omni Center 1032 
 1033 

• No. 53 – Arena 1 &2 chiller replacement ($1,100,000):  Ald. Bialecki questioned 1034 
whether the facility will be set for the future if the city invests $1.1 million in replacing 1035 
the chillers. 1036 

 1037 
Jarrod said the city paid $2,500 to an ice arena consultant that performs HVAC design and 1038 
stated, “The reason we paid the $2,500 is so we could get a report we could rely on.  I met with 1039 
the individual at the Omni Center, and he knew his ice arenas.  He has designed ice arenas from 1040 
Anchorage, Alaska to Minnesota to Wisconsin to Virginia.” 1041 
 1042 
Fred said he agrees with Ald. Bialecki in the fact the city would be investing $1.1 million 1043 
without knowing if both arenas will be utilized for chilling. 1044 
 1045 
Jarrod said, “I think when I look at the $1.1 million, you are correct that it is a commitment to 1046 
that facility.  A policy decision needs to be administered on the facility in conjunction with 1047 
looking at that amount of our Capital Improvements Budget going into that facility.  But, I also 1048 
look at it too that you need a chiller to make ice.  [Regarding] the existing chillers that are there, 1049 
the report had a variety of options in it, and I can have Dan Wick come to the next meeting and 1050 
go through those options that ranged in the fact of using lesser refrigerants.  But then in five or 1051 
10 years we’re going to be to the point where they’re outlawed.” 1052 
 1053 
Ald. Bialecki said he is seeking a guarantee that there will be a return on the city’s investment if 1054 
it spends $1.1 million on chillers. 1055 
 1056 
Mayor Chilsen said, “I think philosophically the Council is going to have to determine, do we 1057 
want two sheets of ice in there?  Do we want one sheet?  Do we want dry floor and one sheet of 1058 
ice?  I think that’s where this goes because this is a fairly substantial commitment.” 1059 
 1060 
Fred said, “I’d like to know the chiller cost for replacement in Arena 1.  The reason I’m saying 1061 
that is Arena 1 is where you have your bleachers.  If that’s where our intention or thought 1062 
process is, because we don’t have a whole lot of wiggle room in Arena 2 for people to watch.” 1063 
 1064 
Jarrod offered to bring forward as an agenda item the study that was performed to the November 1065 
4 Board of Public Works meeting.  Jarrod noted there are approximately eight different 1066 
combinations that could be done, including replacing the chiller only in Arena 1.  Jarrod also 1067 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
27 

noted the chiller in Arena 1 is approximately 23 years old, while the chiller in Arena 2 is 1068 
approximately 9 years old.  Jarrod pointed out that the $1.1 million would combine both chillers 1069 
and produce a new system and said, “Once you look at those numbers and start looking at them, 1070 
if you’re going to keep two sheets of ice and the cost savings outlined in that report, if you’re 1071 
going to keep two chillers and do the whole thing, this is the best option to save money in the 1072 
long run and have the best system.  Is it the only system that can do what you need it to do?  No.  1073 
Is it the only option of leaving the existing 9-year-old chiller in and putting in a new chiller?  I 1074 
don’t have the report in front of me, but I want to say that it was going to be $650,000 to just put 1075 
the chiller in Arena 1.” 1076 
 1077 
Ald. Pogreba asked that this item be left on the budget for further discussion at the November 4 1078 
Board of Public Works meeting. 1079 
 1080 

• No. 54 – Equipment Replacement Fund ($250,000):  Jarrod said the Parks and 1081 
Recreation Board understands this item will be removed if the new chiller is funded. 1082 

 1083 
Fred said the board needs to see the list of items, noting he does not see any of the funds being 1084 
applied to a roof. 1085 
 1086 
City Hall 1087 
 1088 

• No. 57 – Office suite carpeting ($10,000):  Ald. Pogreba said this item will remain in 1089 
the budget for now. 1090 

• No. 58 – Council Chambers audio/video equipment ($100,000) 1091 
 1092 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to remove Project No. 58 – Council Chambers 1093 
audio/video equipment – from the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget. 1094 
 1095 
Ald. Bialecki said he believes there are other areas that need to be addressed first. 1096 
 1097 
Ald. Pogreba said it is his understanding that meetings would be recorded digitally with a new 1098 
system, noting he had shown Jarrod a text he had received from an audience member who was 1099 
having difficulty hearing what was being said.  However, Ald. Pogreba said he does not believe a 1100 
new audio/video system is essential. 1101 
 1102 
Jarrod said the city had received an estimate of what it would cost to replace the existing 1103 
audio/video system. 1104 
 1105 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-1 (Jarrod). 1106 
 1107 
Ald. Bialecki asked that the board return to Agenda Item 12. 1108 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
28 

 1109 
Fred noted that the budget currently sits at $8,011,500.  This means $4,611,500 still must be cut 1110 
if the city is to remain under the $3.4 million cap. 1111 
 1112 
Ald. Bialecki referred to a new audio/video system, stating he wants to see what it is and to know 1113 
who gave the city the $100,000 proposal. 1114 
 1115 
Brea noted that the proposal would include improving the audio system in Room 112.  Brea 1116 
stated the audio recordings in Room 112 have been “terrible” and are unreliable for recording 1117 
meeting minutes.  Brea said, “That’s not acceptable because we can’t rely on recreating minutes 1118 
by hand.  And I think the improvements here would also fix the television system.  We’re 1119 
limping by with what we have.  This item did come from the department heads; we’ve been 1120 
talking about it a number of times.  So I think it would be worthwhile to bring back the details 1121 
and talk about what it includes next time.” 1122 
 1123 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Brea said the department heads have been discussing 1124 
this topic for some time. 1125 
 1126 
Jarrod said he believes the cost was received approximately three months ago. 1127 
 1128 
Brea said it would be ideal to have scrolling messages on the city’s Charter Communications 1129 
channel. 1130 
 1131 
Ald. Pogreba noted he does not have Charter Communications and said he leaning toward 1132 
supporting a new audio/video system so all local systems have access. 1133 
 1134 
Ald. Bialecki said he wishes he had been informed of this situation earlier. 1135 
 1136 
Ald. Pogreba asked Jarrod to place Item 58 on a line item for the November 4 Board of Public 1137 
Works meeting. 1138 
 1139 
Item 12 – Review and consideration of La Crosse Community Foundation grant 1140 
application for planting trees in City boulevards 1141 
 1142 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve La Crosse Community 1143 
Foundation grant application for planting trees in City boulevards. 1144 
 1145 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1146 
 1147 
 1148 
 1149 
 1150 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, October 7, 2014 
29 

Adjournment  1151 
 1152 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn at 8:19 p.m. 1153 
 1154 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1155 
 1156 
 1157 
Recorded by: 1158 
 1159 
Kirk Bey 1160 

Reviewed 10/10/14 
 


